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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Village of Bourbonnais
Bourbonnais, lllinsis

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Viliage of
Bourbonnais, as of and for the year ended Aprii 30, 2014, and lhe related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Village of Bourbonnais' basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We did not
audit the financial statements of the Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency, which represent 35.8
percent, 40.4 percent, and 16.6 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenue of the
Sewer Operating Fund. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it refates to the amounts included for the Kankakee River
Metropotitan Agency, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of materal misstatement of the financial stalemenis, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’'s internal conirol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our apinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditers, the financiat staiements refarred
to above preseni fairly, in all maierial respecis, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Village of Bourbonnals as of April 30, 2014 and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepied in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 18 to the financial statements the Viliage of Bourbonnais adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB No. 65, lfems Previously Reporied as Assels and Liabilities. As also described in Note
18, the Village recorded an adjustment in the current period in order to correct 2 material misstatement
of a previously issued financial statement. Cur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter,

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Village's April 30, 2013 financial statemenis, and in our report dated
Navember 26, 2013, we expressed unmodified opinions on those financial statements. in our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented here in as of and for the year ended April 30, 2013,
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Matters
Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and the required suppiementary infarmation listed in the table
of contents be presented {o supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statementis, is required by the Governmental Accouniing Standards Board,
who considers it {o be an essential part of financial repariing for placing the basic financial statemenis
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures o the required supplementary infermation in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepied in the United States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the
methods of preparing the infarmation and comparing the information for consistency with
management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpase of forming opinions on the financial siatements thai
collectively comprise the Village of Bourbonnais' basic financiai statements. The statistical section as
listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements, The stafistical section has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on .



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 3,
2014, on our consideration of the Village of Bourbonnais' internal control over financial reporting and on
our tesis of its compiliance with ceriain provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matlters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporling and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financiai reporting or an compliance. That repart is an inlegral past of an audit
performed in accordance wilh Government Audiling Standards in considering the Village of
Bourbonnais’ internal controf over financial reporting and compliance.

ﬁwmjgm% Folloion ﬁi} .

December 3, 2014



VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

This section of the Village of Bourbonnais' comprehensive annual financial report presents
management’'s discussion and analysis of the Village's financial performance during the fiscal
year that ended on April 30, 2014. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the Village's
basic financial statements, which {ollow this section.

Financial Highlights

Summary Financiat Highlights for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014 are as follows:

» Growth continues in Bourbonnais. During the fiscal year 2014, fifty-one permits were
issued for new single family homes.

» The Village completed Burns Road west of Rouie 45 {o Career Center Road.

s Construction was nearing compietion on a new downtown parking lot and improvements
to Benoit and Toni streeis in the downtown TIF district. Compietion is scheduled for fall
2014.

» The Vililage completed the relining of ifs sewer line running through the Burns Farm and
repaired more than a dozen manholes that were leaking.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Village's annual report consists of four parts - 1) management’s discussion and analysis
(this section), 2} the basic financial statements, 3} required supplementary information, and 4) a
statistical section that presenis optional statistical information. The basic financial statements
include two types of statements that present different views of the Village' financial condition.

» The first two statements are government wide financial statements that provide both
fong-term and shori-term information about the Village's overall financial status. These
appear first and inciude the Statement of Net Position and the Siatement of Activities.
They report information about the Village as a whole. The statements are prepared using
the accrual method of accounting which is the accounting method used by most private
seclor businesses, The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Village's assets,
deferred outflows, Habilities, and deferred inflows except the fiduciary funds. All current
yaar revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities. The two
statemnents report the governmental and business-type activities of the Village that
include all services performed by the Village. These activities are funded primarily by
praperiy taxes, charges for services and federal and state grants.

The Statement of Net Position shows the Village's assets, deferred ocutflows, liabilities,
and deferred inflows. The difference between total assets, deferred outflows, liabilities,
and deferred inflows eguals the net position of the Village. A deficit occurs when there
are more liabilities and deferred inflows than there are assets and deferred outflows to
pay those liabilities. This statement measures the financial strength of the Village; the
greater the net position figure, generally the indication of a heatthier financial position for

N
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

the Village. The statement helps management determine if the Village wili be able to
fund current obligations and whether they have resources available for future use.

The Statement of Activities shows the current year change in net position on a revenues
minus expenses basis. It generally shows the operating resuits for a given year of the
Vitiage. Any excess of revenues aver expenses results in a surpius for the year that in
turn increases the net position available to fund future needs of the Village. Excess
expenses over revenues have an opposite impact on net position.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual paris of
the Village governmeni, reporting the Village's operations in more detadl than the
governmeni wide statements. Funds that are separately stated as major funds include
the General Fund, Special Tax Allocation Fund, Motor Fuel Tax Fund, Motor Fuel Tax
Bond Fund, Impact Fees Fund, Sewer Operating Fund, and Refuse Disposal Fund.

The governmental funds statemenis illustrate how general government services like
public safety were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending. They repori short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable
resources during the year and balances of spendable resources availabie at the end of
the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental
programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes a long-term view, comparisons between
these iwo perspectives may provide insight info the long-term impact of shori-term
financing decisions. The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental
Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances both
include reconciliations to the governmeni-wide statements to assist in understanding the
differences between these two perspectives.

Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the government operates like businesses, such as the Sewer Operating Fund.
Information provided is consistent with the focus provided by the government-wide
financial statements, but is separately stated for each major enterprise fund.

Fiduciary funds - The Village is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees' pension plans,
It is also responsible for other assets that - because of a trust arrangement - can be
used only for the trust beneficiaries. The Village is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. Al of the Village's
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a
statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the
Viliage's government-wide financial statements because the Village cannot use these
assets to finance its operations.



VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional infarmation that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Noies to Financial
Statements can be found on pages 22-48.

Other Iaformation

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information including the majer governmenta!l fund budgetary
schedules and data concerning the Village's progress in funding ils obligations to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Required suppiementary information can be found on pages
49-53 of this repor.

infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm
sewers, etc.}) are neither reported nor depreciated in the governmental fund financial
statements. Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) Statement No. 34 requires that
these assels be valued and reported within the Governmenial Activities column of the
governmeni-wide statements. Additionally, the governmen{ must elect to either 1) depreciate
these asseis over their estimated useful life or 2} develop a system of asset management
designed to mainiain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. The Village has chosen to
depreciate assets over their useful life.

If an improvement project is considered a recurring cost that does not extend the asset's ariginal
useful life or expand its capacily, the cost of that project will be expensed. For example, an
"overiay” of a road will be expensed, whereas a "rebuild” of a road will be capitalized.



VILLAGE CF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDBING APRIL 30, 2014

Government-Wide Financial Statements — Condensed Financial Infoermation

Reports summarizing both long-term and shost-ierm information regarding the financial
condition of the Village are contained in the Statement of Net Pasition and the Statement of
Activities which follow:

Statements of Net Position
Net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. in

the case of the Village of Bourbonnais, net position was $41,088,894 as of Aprii 30, 2014. The
following table reflects the condensed Statements of Net Position:

2014 2013
Governimentai  Business-type
Activities Activities Total Total
ASSETS
Current assels $ 9,963,988 $ 2,707,658 512,671,647 § 15,259 051
Nencurrent assets 22,819,443 13,827,911 36,747,354 32,064,008
Total assets 32,783,431 16,635,570 49,419,001 47,323,059
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total deferred outflows of resources 269,086 99,400 368,496 415,328
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 741,249 411,002 1,152,251 1,326,626
Nencurrent liabilities 5,857,931 1,688,421 7,546,352 8,014,449
Total liabilities 6,599,180 2,098,423 8,698,603 9,341,075
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets,
net of refated debt 19,753,944 6,178,394 25,932,338 21,843,591
Restricted 5,129,767 1,180,469 6,310,236 8,676,671
Unrestricted 1,569,626 7,276,684 8,846,320 7,877,050
Total net position 525453347 §14 635,547 $41,088,804 8 38,397,312

Discussion & Analysis

The Village's net position was $41,088,894 on April 30, 2014. Capital assels, net of related
debt, amounted to $25,832,338. This figure is arrived at by t{aking the original costs of the
Village's capital assets, subtracting accumulated depreciation to date and comparing this figure
to the amount of remaining debt ulilized to finance the acquisition of those assets.



VILLAGE CF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

Restricted net paosition totaled $6,310,236 on April 30, 2014, and are those assets restricted by
ordinance or by revenue bond agreements. By comparison, unrestricted nei position totaled
$8,846,320 for the vear ended April 30, 2014, This {otal is the net accumulated result of the
current and previous years' operations. Village operations are based on revenues from property
taxes, charges for services, state and federal aid and grants and locat funds received to fund

Village programs.

Statements of Activities —

Qverall resulis of operations for the Village of Bourbonnais for the fiscal operating pericd ending
April 30, 2014 are reported in the Statement of Activities for the Village. This statement reports

the changes in the Village's net position for this fiscal period.

REVENUES
Frogram Revenues
Charges for service
Operating grants and contributions
General Revenues
Property taxes
Franchise faxes
Income tax and other state taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain (loss) on sale of assels

Total revenues

EXPENSES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Eccnomic development
Culture and recreation
interest on long-term debt
Sewer operations
Refuse disposal

Total expenses

Change in net position

2014 2013
Governmental Business-fype

Activities Activities Total Total
$ 836118 § 5549,085 § 6,385,203 & 4,712,230
77,561 - 77,561 218,005
1,821,114 - 1,821,114 1,524,852
255,828 - 295,828 285,637
5,256,600 - 5,256,600 6,128,246
17,211 7,053 24,264 32,652
- - - 685,287
- 6,000 8,000 800
8,304,432 5,662,138 13,866,570 13,608,854
4,091,455 - 4,001,455 5,574,588
3,504,850 - 3,504,990 3,264,246
1,242,283 - 1,242,283 1,120,733
45,606 . 45,6086 19,403
52,955 - 52,855 58,705
168,903 - 168,803 122,543
- 2,822,318 2,822,318 2,886,032
- 1,083,851 1,063,851 986,713
9,106,192 3,886,169 12,882,361 14,032,973
$ (B01,760) $ 1675869 § 874208 § (424.119)




VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

Discussion & Analysis

Total Village revenues were $13,866,570 for the period. The Village's total cost (expense} to
fund ali governmental activities was $8,108,192 while business-type activities were $3,886,169.
A majarity of {hese costs were funded by property tax, user fees and state aid.

Capital Assets

The Village's investment in capital assets for its Governmenial and Business-{ype Aclivities as
of April 30, 20414 amounied to $30,818,437. The investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings, underground systems, infrastructure,
and construction in progress. This amount includes a net increase in capital assets {including
additions and retirements) of $2,120,734 for the current fiscal year. Detailed information
regarding the change in capital assets for Governmental and Business-type Activities is
included in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 34.

Debt QOutstanding
The Viilage's lang-term debt consists of certain revenue bonds issued in the cumrent and
previous vears. Infarmation relating to long-term debt can be found in the Notes to Financial

Statements on pages 35-38.

Governmental Activities

General Government

As the name implies, the general government component of the Village has at its core those
basic municipal services which are most often associated with local government: i.e. police
department, public works, code enforcement, building and zoning and recreation. These
services are supported primarily through those revenues received through real estate
properly tax, sales tax and other shared revenues received by the Village, including fees
and other charges. To this extent they do not have a dedicated revenue stream or streams,
but instead must rely on a limited or finite number of dollars available each year within which
these programs and services must be funded.

Tax Increment Financing Districts (F1F)

The Village has established two Redeveiopment Project Areas (“TIF Districts”) pursuant to
the Tax increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as amended {the *TIF Act"}. The TIF
Districts allow the Village to utilize the incremental property taxes and certain incrementai
sales taxes generated by the TiF Districts (*Incremental Taxes") to provide funds for a wide
variety of capital improvemenis within the respective TIF Disiricts and other eligible costs
allowed pursuant to the TIF Act which would ctherwise potentially require utilization of other
revenues of the Village or other capital financing options allowed by faw. The Incremental
Taxes have been used te fund street improvements, utility projects, land acquisition, grants
for businesses operating or desiring to cperate within the TIF Districts and to pay for various
other eligible costs permitted by the TIF Act.



VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2014

Business-type Activities

The Village of Bourbonnais' "Business-type Activities™ are comprised of the Sewer Operating
Fund, which supports the operation and maintenance of the sewer utilities and the Refuse
Disposal Fund, which accounts far the Village's refuse disposal services. These funds continue
to be well managed enterprises which allow the Village to provide these {axpayer services in an
efficient and cost effective manner.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

Despite econamic conditions to the contrary, growth continues in Bourbonnais, During the fiscal
year 2014, fifty-one permits were issued for new single family homes. This continues the
positive growth pattern of the last nine years.

The Village completed the extension of Burns Road west from Burning Bush Drive to Career
Center Road. This allows a connection between Route 45 and Career Center Road north of
town. in fiscal 2014, the Village neared completion on a new downtown parking lot and
improvements to Bengit and Toni Streets in the downtown TIF District. The Village completed a
major sewer relining project in the Burmms Farm area as well as other sewer repairs.

Various new businesses apened in the Village including Arby's, Asian Bisiro and Rosati's Pizza.
Also, Riverside Hospital has opened its 80-bad Assisted Living Facility on US Route 45/52.

Property values have remained relatively stable in Bourbonnais and with the Village portion of
the properly lax levy currently at 5.4% of total propery tax bili; management will continue to
coniral expenses in order {o continue {o provide quality services to our residents. The Village
has begun to use a multi-year budget model that should allow for better planning, both for
capital improvements and general aperations.

Contacting the Village's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, taxpayers, and creditors with
a general overview of the Village's finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for
the moaney i receives and expends. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, please contact the Village of Bourbonnais Municipal Office, 600 Main
Street NW, Bourbonnais, {llinois 60914.

10



VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

APRIL 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for April 30, 2013)

2014 2013
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Total
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 4372053 S 202384 % 4574437 3 6505256
Investments 3,384,968 1,218,736 4.803,704 5,278,004
Receivables 2,675,108 354,662 2.828 770 3,105,857
Internat balances (481,017) 481,017 - -
Other assets 122,876 440,860 563,738 369,534
Total current assets 9,863,088 2,707 658 12,671,647 15,258,051
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation 22.819.443 7,858,524 30.818 437 28,755,033
Debt issuance costs, net - - « 125,297
Investment in joint venture - 5,928 817 5928817 5,183,678
Total noncurrent assets 22,819,443 13,927,911 36,747 354 32,084,008
Total Assets 32,783,431 16,635,570 49,419 061 47 323 059
DEFERRED OUTFIL.OWS OF RESOURCES
Unamaortized loss on refunding 269,098 98,400 388,496 415,328
Total deferred outflows of resources 268,096 G3,400 368,496 415 328
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources 330525627 16,734,970 49,787 497 47,738,387
LIABILITIES
Current liahilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 288,766 138,775 428,541 705,254
Accrued interest 58,746 31,227 886,873 95 618
Bonds payable 370,000 240,600 610,000 485,000
Capital lease payable 23 737 - 23,737 40,754
Total current liabilities 741,249 411,002 1,162,251 1,326,626
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable in more than one year 5,133.862 1,680,000 6,813,862 7,432,454
Capital lsase payable 75,704 - 75,704 -
Accrued compensated absences 648,365 8.421 656,788 581,985
Total noncurrent Kahibities 5,857,931 1,688,421 7,546,352 8,014,449
Total Liabilities 6,599,180 2,089,423 8,688 603 9,341,075
NET POSITION
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 19,753,844 6,178,384 25,832,338 21,843,691
Restricted, Expendable 5,128,767 1,180,469 6,310,236 8,676,671
Unrestricted 1,588,636 7.276,684 8 846 320 7,877,050
Total Net Position 3 26453347 § 14636547 $ 410888584 $ 38397312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

11
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

AND THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
APRIL 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for April 30, 2013)

Adjustments necessary to converi the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position are as follows:

Governmental funds combined fund balance

Capital Assets used in governmental activilies are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmenta! fund financial statements.

Revenues deferred in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet due to lack of
availability to pay for current-period expenditures are recognized in the
Statement of Net Position.

Unamortized foss on refunding of debt is not reported in the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet, but is reported in the Statement of Net Position

Debt issuance costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are not reported
in the Governmentat Funds Balance Sheet, but are reported in the Statement of
Net Position.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Al Habilities are
reported in the Statements of Net Postion:

Bonds payable

Capital lease payable

Interest payable

Compensated absences

Net FPosition of Governmental Activities

2014 2013
$ 7,849,543 § 10,821416
22,818,443 19,051,602
1,825,679 1,575,460
269,006 301,570
. 77,566
(5,503,862) (5,762,454)
(89,441) (40,754)
(58,746) (60,829)
(648,365) (573,574)
$ 26453347 $ 25,390,003

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements,
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

APRIL 30, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for April 30, 2013)

Adjustments necessary to convert the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances fo the Statement of Activities are as
follows:

Combined Change in Fund Balances

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities capital outlay expenditures over the capitalization threshold
set by the Village are capitalized and depreciated over their useful! fives.

Revenues recoghized in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resqurces are deferred in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancas.

The following expenses reported on the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Amorization of band issuance costs

Amagrtization of loss on refunding of debt

Amaorization of bord premium

{increase) decrease in accrued compensated absences

{increase} decrease in accrued interest on bonds payable

Capitat lease financing is reported on the governmentat fund financial statements as
an other financing source, but is reported as a liability on the government-wide
financial statements.

Repayment of capital lease obligations is reperted as an expenditure in governmental
funds. However, repayment of capital lease obiigations reduces the capital lease
payable in the government-wide financial statements.

Froceeds from the issuance of debt is reporied on the governmental fund financiat
statements as an other financing source, hut is reporied as a Hability on the
government-wide financial statements.

The advance refunding of debt is reported on the governmental fund financial
statements as an other financing use, but is reported as a reduction of a liability on
the government-wide financial statements.

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.
However, repayment of long-term debt reduces long-term liabilities in the government.
wide financial statements.

Change in Net Position of Governmenta! Activities

2014 2013
S (2971.873) 3 1,143,598
1,825 171 £87.509
250,219 46,480

. (7,700)

(32.474) (32,473)
8,592 8,592
(74,791) (39,627)
2,083 {31,681)
(126,251} -
67,564 -

- (5,939,763)

. 1,664,215

250.000 220,000

$  {B01.760) § (2.280.850)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
APRIL 30, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for April 30, 2013)

2014 2813
Enterprise Funds
Sewer Refuse Total Total
Operating Disposal Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32883 % 164,396 § 187,359 § 870,632
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 5025 - 5025 5,025
Investments - restricted 1,218,736 - 1218736 1,211,746
Accounis receivable, net 334,425 18,874 353,299 273,886
Interest recaivable 1,363 - 1,363 1,363
Prepaid expense 440 860 - 440 860 317,447
Due from other funds 610,542 154,013 764,555 281,140
Totat current assats 2.643.814 337,283 2881197 2,658,338
Noncurrent assets
Investment in joint venture 5,828.917 - 5,828,817 5183678
Capital assets, net 7,958,894 - 7,938 834 7703431
Debt issuance costs, net - - - 47,731
Totai noncurrent assets 13,827 911 - 13,6827 911 12,834,840
Total Assets 16,571,825 337.283 16,909,108 15,603,179
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unamaortized loss on refunding 99,400 - 98,400 -
Total deferrad outflows of resources 899 404 - 98,400 -
Total assets and deferred
outfiows of resources 18,671,225 337,283 17,008,508 15,593,179
LIABILITIES
Current liahilities
Accaunts payable 38.653 94,069 132,622 215,114
Accrued payrolf expenses 71583 - 7.153 3,13
Due to other funds 535 273,003 273,538 283,113
Accrued interest 31,227 - 31,227 34,788
Bonds, notes, and icans payable 240,000 - 240,000 235000
Total current liabilities 317.468 367,072 £84.540 771,207
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 8,421 - 8421 8,421
Bonds, notes. and loars payable 1,680,000 - 1.680.000 1,806,242
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,688 421 - 1688421 1.814 663
Total Liabilities 2,005,888 267,072 2,372,961 2.585.870
NET POSITION
Investad in capital assets, net of related debt 5,178,384 - 6,178,394 5,662,189
Restrictad for bond retirement 568,087 “ 588 097 568,087
Restricted for repairs and maintenance 612,372 - 612,372 608,860
Lnrestricted 7,306,473 (29,788) 7.276.684 6,168,163
Total Net Position $ 14665336 § (29,788 § 14635547 § 13,007 209

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended April 30, 2013)

2014 2013
Enterprise Funds
Sewer Refuse Total Total
Gperating Bisposal Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3545750 § 1068231 § 4613981 $ 3966971
Cther operating revenue 185,522 4,343 189,865 139,876
Total operating revenues 3731272 1,072,574 4,803,846 4 106 847
OFERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 431,912 - 431,512 356,450
Contractual services 1,816,976 1,063 586 2,880 562 2,627 461
Utiiities 8,267 - 6,267 5766
Repairs and maintenance 184,780 - 184 790 146,872
Other supplies and expenses 48,304 265 46,569 56,805
Depreciation 240,104 - 240,104 233,165
Total operating expenses 2726353 1.063.851 3.780.204 3,420,619
Operating income (loss) 1,004,518 8,723 1,013,642 586,228
NONOPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 7,053 - 7.053 £,859
Amortization - - - (20,888)
Equity interest in joint venture operating income {loss) 745,238 - 745235 {19,135)
Gain {loss) on refunding of debt - - - {162,368}
Gain {ioss) on sales of assels 6,000 - 6,000 {169,440}
interest expense {95 §65) - {55,865) {120,318}
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 662 327 - 662,327 {485 250}
Income (loss) before capital grants and transfers 1,667,246 8723 1,675,969 200,938
CAPITAL GRANTS - - - 15,474
TRANSFER IN - - - 1,640,319
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,667,246 8723 1,675,968 1,856,731
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR
As previously repored 13,045,821 {38,512) 13,007,209 11,150,578
Prior period adjustment {47 731} - {47 731) -
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 12,888,090 (38,512 12,958,578 11,150,578
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 14665336 3§ {28789) $ 14635547 % 13,007,309

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRH. 30, 2014
{(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended April 30, 2013)

2014 2013
Enterprise Funds
Sewer Refuse Total
Operating Disposal Enterprise
Fund Fund Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts fram customers S 3486008 § 1058484 § 4544472 § 4083889
(Other receipts 185,522 4,343 184 865 139,876
Payments to suppliers (2,278,932 {1,067 965) {3,336,897) {2,635 876)
Fayments {o employees {427,950) - {427.950) {360,969}
Net cash provided by {used in) aperating activities 964,648 4.842 959,480 1,202,870
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANGING ACTIVITIES
Payments from ({o) other funds, net {338,696} (154,294) (492,990 {813,712)
Net cash provided by (used in} noncapital financing activities {338,686) (154254, (492, 990) {613.712)
CASH FLOWS FRUOM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from the sale of capital assels 6,000 - 6,000 455 Do
Purchase of capital assets {535,667) - {535,667) {163,017}
Principal paid on capital debt {235,000 - {235.000) {225 000
interest paid on capital debt {85,168} - {B5,169) (139,558
Proceeds from capital grants - - - 15474
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities {849,836 - {843,835) {57,102)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from the sale or maturity of investments - - - 363,222
interest received 7.053 - 7.053 7,765
Purchases of investments {6,520) - {8.880) (370,987)
et cash provided by (used in) investing activities 53 - 63 -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {223,821} {143 452} {373,273} 532,086
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 261.6809 313,848 575 857 43.601
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR g 37888 5 164386 5 202384 5 575657
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (L.OSS) TO NET
CASH PROVISED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income {inss) 3 1.004918 5 B723 5 1073842 3 586,228
Adiustments to reconcile operating income o net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation expense 240,104 - 240,104 233,165
Changes in assels and Habiiities
Accounts receivable, net {72,546} {9.767) {82.313) 95 898
Prepald expense {123,413} - {123,413} 90,385
Accounts payable (88,378} 5,886 {82,492} 100,743
Accrued payroll expenses 3862 - 3,862 (2,288)
Accrued compensated absences - - - {2,250
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 964648 3§ 4.842 5 065480 3 1202870
NON-CASH FiINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
increase in investment in joint venture 3 745238 &8 -~ 5 745233 8 {18,135)
Amortization of toss on refunding of debt 5 14358 § - 3 14,358 5 (1.640.315)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

interest receivable

Other receivables

fnvestments, at fair value
Certificates of deposit
Mortgage and asset backed securities
U.S. Government Bonds and GSE Bonds
Mutual funds

Investment contract with insurance company

Prepaid benefits

Total Assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Bue to other related entities
Refunds payable and cther liabiliiies

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pension benefits

and other purposes

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
APRIL 30, 2014

Pension
{and other employee benefit)
Trust Funds Agency Funds
Police Deferred Building
Pension Compensation Escrow Community
Fund Plan Fund Fund
$ 532027 % - 16,183 % 5427
8,239 - - -
- . 8,082 -
163,039 - - -
2.662,008 - - -
1,086,336 . . -
6,665,859 - - -
- 1,343,258
31,405 - - -
11,149,913 1,343,259 24 265 5,427
5,035 - 225 -
- - 2,146 -
- - 21,894 5,427
5,035 . 24,265 5,427
$ 11144878 § 1343250 3§ - 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Plan members

Totat contributions

Investrment income
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
interest
Dividends

Less investment expenses
Net investment income (Joss)
Totat additions {reductions)

DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expenses
Benefds paid to participanis
Refund of caontributions

Totat deductions

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSION
BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES

BEGINNING OF YEAR

END OF YEAR

Pension

{and other employee benefit)
Trust Funds

Police Deferred

Pension Compensation
Fund Plan

3 427079 % -
203,809 90,928
630,888 90,928
652,773 101,807
180,285 .
654,449 -
897,507 101,807
4,497 -
893,010 101,807
1,523,898 192,735
18,398 141
503,109 7,048
3.606 117,532
526,113 125,621
897,785 67,114
10,147,093 1,276,145
$ 11,144878 § 1,343,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL. 30, 2014

NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Village of Bourbonnais (Village) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America (“GAAP”) as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Beard (“GASB”).

Financial Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the
Village of Bourbonnais and any component units. The criteria used to determine if a legally
separate crganization's financial statemenis should be included and the manner in which they
should be displayed center on the nature of financial accountabilily. Among facters determining
this financia! accountahiiity include the degree to which the governing body is controfled by the
Village as manifested by the ability to appoint a majority of its voting board, approval of its
budget, the degree to which it provides a financial benefit or burden to the Village or the extent
to which it is fiscally dependent. No component units were deemed to be present for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2014.

Basis of Presentation

The financial activities of the Village consist of both governmental-type activilies and business-
type activiies. A brief description of the Village's government-wide and fund financial
statementis is as follows;

Government-wide Financial Statements: The governmeni-wide Statement of Net Position
and Statement of Activities report the overall financial activity of the Village, excluding fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made fo minimize the double-counting of inlernal activities.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
Village. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmenial
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole
or in part by fees charged to exiernal parties for services.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates ithe degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function {i.e. general government) ar segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include 1) fines, fees and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included in program revenues are
presented as generat revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
Viitage's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate stalements are presented for each fund
categary, governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reporied as nonmajor funds.
For the year ended April 30, 2014, the Village has reporied all funds as major.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Maijor Funds

The Village has presented the following governmeantal funds as major:

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used fo
account for all financial resources except those required tc be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Tax Allocation Fund — The Special Tax Allocation Fund is used to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted o expenditures for
special purposes. The Special Tax Allocation Fund includes the transactions of ihe
Village's two tax increment financing districts.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund — This fund accounts for motor fuel taxes received by the Village.,
These taxes are resfricted for uses approved by the lllincis Depariment of
Transportation,

Motor Fuet Tax Bond Fund - This fund accounis for debt service expenditures related
to revenue bonds issued by the Village under the Motor Fuel Tax Fund. Amounts in this
fund are restricted by the bond indenture for debt service.

Impact Fees Fund — This fund accounts for impact fees collected from developers as a
resuit of Village ordinance, These funds are committed for capital development projects.

The Village has presented the following proprietary funds as major:

Sewer Operating Fund — This fund accounts for the Village's sewer and solid waste
operations.

Refuse Disposal Fund — This fund accounts for the Village's refuse disposal
operations.

QOther Funds
Additionally, the Village reperts the following fiduciary-type funds:

Pension {and other employee benefit} Trust Funds - These funds account for the
accumulation of retirement and disability benefits heid in trust for the police pension plan
and the Village's deferrad compensation pian. See Note 7 for a description of each plan.

Building Escrow Agency Fund - This agency-type fund accounts for the accumulation
of fees assessed to cantractors arising from residential development held by the Village
in a purely custodial capacity. These fees will either be used to pay expenses related {o
the develapment incurred on behalf of the contractor or they will be refunded to the
contractor.

Community Agency Fund - This agency-type fund accounts for accumuiated donations

received from individuals and businesses which are then redistributed fo charifable
organizations. These funds are held by the Village in a purely custodial capacity.
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APRIL 30, 2014
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial stalemenis are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Village
receives value without directly giving equal value in exchange, include property tax revenue,
grants and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenues from property taxes are
recognized in the period for which the levy is intended io finance, which is the year afier the
taxes are levied. For example, property {axes levied for the calendar year 2013, which wili be
collected in fiscal year ended April 30, 2015, are recorded as receivables and recognized in the
year ended April 30, 2014. This revenue is recognized in the government-wide level financiat
statements, but is deferred in the governmental funds financial statements because i is not
collected soon enough after the end of the year to pay current liabilities.

Revenue from grants, contributions, and other similar items are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required {o be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirementis, in which the Village must
provide local rescurces to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the Village on a reimbursement basis.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from noncperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Village's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales
and services which include sewer and solid waste charges and charges for refuse disposal
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Pension trust funds recognize employer and participant contributions in the period in which
contributions are due and the Village has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Retirement benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible in the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Village considers
revenues to be available if they are collectible within sixty days after the end of the fiscal year.
Expenditures generally are recorded when the related liability is incurred. However, principal
and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences are
recognized as expenditures {o the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reporied as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property taxes, sales taxes, income faxes, utility taxes, intergovernmental revenues, franchise
taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period to the
extent that they are measurable and available, Service fees are recognized as revenues as
they are earned.

Property taxes receivable which are expected to be paid to the Village within sixty days are
considered available and are recognized as revenue. Sales, income and other taxes are
considered io be measurable when they have been collecied by the State or other collection
agent and are recognized as revenue if they are expected {o be received by the Village within
sixty days. Miscellaneoqus revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because
they are generally not measurabie untii actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as
earned because they are both measurabie and available.

The Village reports cerain revenues as deferred inflows of resources on ifs financial
statements. Deferred inflows of resources arise when potential revenue does not meet both the
measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred
inflows of resources also arise when the rescurces are received by the Village before it has a
legat claim te them or prior {o the provision of services.

Revenue from granis, entitlements, and similar items are recognized in the fiscal year in which
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met and the revenue becomes
available,

New Accounting Pronouncements

The Village has adopted GASB Statement No. 61, Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34, GASB Statement No. 85, ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabifities, and GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Correction — 2012 -
an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62 during the year ended April 30, 2014.

The Village will be required to implement GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 and GASB Statement No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees during the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2015, The Village has not yet evaluated the impact of adopting these future
pronouncements on the Village's financial statements.

The Village will be required to implement GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reponting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Stalement No. 27 and GASB Statement 71,
Pension Transition for Contrbutions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016. The Village
has not yet evaluated the impact of adepting these future pronouncements on the Viliage's
financial statements.
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APRIL 30, 2014

NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Village adopts annual budgets for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. No
tegally adopted budgels are prepared for capital project funds, Expenditures for capital project
funds are controlied on a project basis. No adjustments were necessary in order to reconcile the
budgetary information to the GAAP information presented in the Village's basic financial
statements.

There were no funds that bad an excess of expenditures/expenses over budgeted amounis for
the year ended April 30, 2014.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and shori-term
investments with original maturities of 80 days or less from the date of acquisition.

investments
Investments include certificates of deposit with maturities in excess of 90 days at the time of
acquisition. Investments for the Bourbonnais Police Pension Fund are reported at fair value,

determined by closing market prices at year-end as reported by the investment custodian,

Investment in Joint Venture

The investment in joint venture is reperted using the equity method of accounting.

Interfund Transactions

The Village has the following types of inferfund transactions:

Loans - Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. Inferfund foans are
reported as interfund receivables (ie. due from other funds) in lender funds and
interfund payables (i.e. due io other funds) in borrower funds,

Reimbursements - Repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures or
expenses made io the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the
reimbursed fund.

Transfers - Fiows of assets (such as cash or goods) withoui equivalent flows of assets
in return and without a requirement for repayrment, In governmental funds, {ransfers are
reported as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing
sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after
nocnoperating revenues and expenses.
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NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Prepaid Expense

Prepaid expense consists of certain payments to vendors which reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid expenses in both governmeni-wide and fund
financial staiements.

Restricted Assets — Enterprise Fund

Certain cash and investments in the Sewer Operating Fund are restricted in accordance with
the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the revenue bonds, These assets are reflected as
restricted investments and restrictions of net position in the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net
Position.

Capital Assets

Capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure assets,
purchased or acquired which are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost,
Contributed assets are recorded at fair marke! value as of the date donated. Improvements and
other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
cosis incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, infrastructure assets are reported prospectively
from the date of implementation and therefore infrastructure assets acquired prior to May 1,
2004 have not been recarded in the Viliage’s basic financial statements.

Bepreciaticn on capiial assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Useful Life Threshold
Buildings and improvements 20-80 years 3 10,000
Land N/A $ 100,000
Land improvements 10-30 years $ 10,000
Equipment 2-20 years $ 5,000
Water and sewer lines 33-100 years 5 10,000
Streets and improvements 25 years $ 100,060
Intangible assets 2-20 years $ 5,000
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

in addition o assets, the staiement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflow of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a fulure period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources {(expensefexpenditure) untit then. The Village has
one item that quatlifies for reporling in this category. It is the unamariized loss on refunding
reported in the government-wide statement of net position and the praprietary funds statement
of net position. An unamortized loss on refunding resulls from the difference in the carrying
value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. The amount is deferred and amortized over
the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabitities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies o a fulure period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time. The Village has one item
which qualifies for reporting in this category. Under the medified accruat basis of accounting,
unavailable fax revenue is reporied only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds balance sheet reperts unavailable tax revenue from property taxes. These
amounis are deferred and recogrized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the
amounis become available.

{.ong-Term Debt, Bond Premiums, Discounts and Prepaid Dehbt Service insurance

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statemenis, outstanding debis are
reporied as liabilites. Bond premiums and discounts, as welt as prepaid debt service insurance,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Prepaid debt service
insurance is reported as an asset and amortized over the term of the related debi,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, incurred during the current period. The face amount
of debt issued is reported as an other financing source. Premiums on debt issuances are
reported as an other financing source while discounts on debt issuances are reported as an
other financing use. Issuance cosis, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reporied as debt service expenditures.

Accrued Compensated Absences

The liability for compensaied absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial stalements consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation and sick leave balances for
Village employees. The liakility has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave
amounis for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and
other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future o receive such payments
upcn termination are inciuded. Village employees are entitled to certain compensated absences
based on their length of employment. The liability has been calculated using the employees’
current salary level and includes salary related cost (e.q. FICA and Medicare Tax).
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Fund Balance is the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources in a governmental fund. The following types of fund
balances may be presented in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — the portion of a governmental fund’s net position that are
not available {o be spent, either shert term or fong term, in either form or through legal
restrictions. Amounts reported as nonspendable include prepaid expenses.

Restricted Fund Balance — the poriion of a governmenial fund’'s net position that are
subiect to external enforceable legal restrictions. Amounts reported as restricled include
fund balances that are restricied for capital projects, economic development and public
safety,

Committed Fund Balange -~ the porticn of 2 governmental fund’s pet position with self-
imposed constraints or limitations thai have been placed at the highest level of decision
making. Amounts reporied as commitied include impact fees collected as a result of a
Viliage ordinance which requires these fees to be used for capital development. These
fees may only be modified or rescinded by an action of the Village Board.

Assigned Fund Balance — the portion of a governmental fund’s net position denoted for
an intended use of the resources. The Village has no assigned fund balances.

Unassigned Fund Balance — available expendable financial resources in a governmentai
fund that are not designated for a specific purpose.

It is the Village's policy to first spend restricted funds if restricted funds are available.
Additionally, if different levels of unrestricied funds are available for spending, the Village
considers commitied funds to be expended first, followed by assigned and then unassigned.

Net Position

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is dispiayed in three
companents as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other liabilifies thai are attributable to the acquisition, censtruction, or
improvement of those asseis.

Restricted - This consists of the poriion of net position that is legally restricted by
outside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling tegislation. When
both restricted and unrestricted rescurces are available for use, generally it is the
Village's policy {0 use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they
are needed.

Unrestricted - This consists of the portion of net posilion that does not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”
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NCTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinued)

Deficit Fund Balances/Net Position

The following funds had a deficit fund balance/net position for the year ended April 30, 2014;

Fund Deficit
Refuse Disposal Fund $ 28,789

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied annually cn all taxable real property located in the Vilage. The Village
must file its tax levy ordinance by the last Tuesday of December of each year. The owner of real
properly on January 1 (lien date) in any year is liable for taxes of that year. Property {axes are
collected by the Kankakee County Collectos/Treasurer who remits to the Village its share of the
coilection. Taxes levied for calendar year 2013 were due, payable, and collected in two
instaliments in June and September of 2014, The Village normaily receives these taxes in July,
August, September, October and November of the year collected.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financiai statements and the reported amounis
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fram those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statement ameunts in order {o
conform with the 2014 financial statement presentaticn.

NOTE 2 - DEPOQSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Stajutes autharize the Village to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies,
banker's acceptances, repurchase agreements {meeting ceriain statutory requirements), cerain
rated instrumenis of commercial paper and [llinois Stale Treasurer's investment pool (llinois
Funds). Simitar investmenis are permitted for the Police Pension trust funds, which is governed
by the illinois Pension Code.

The Bourbannais Police Pension Fund manages its investments in accordance with the
regulations prescribed by the l#inois Pension Code.

The Village's investment policies require all uninsured deposits with financial institutions to be

fully collateralized with the collateral held by an independeni third party acting as the Village's
ageni and held in the name of the Village and pension trust fund, respectively.
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NOTE 2 -~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

A reconciliation of deposits and investments presented in this disclesure and the financial
statement captions shown on the government-wide Siatement of Net Pasition is as foilows:

Carrying amount of Deposits $ 8,560,936
Carrying amount of Investments 617,205
Total $ 5,178,141
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4574437
Invesimenis 4,603,704
Total $ 9,178,141
Deposits

At April 30, 2014, the carrying amouni of the Viliage's depasits with financial institutions for
governmental and business-type activities was $8,560,936 and the bank balance was
$8,610,95C. These amounis represent cash in banks and cedlificates of deposit.

Cusfodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the everi of a bank failure,
deposits may not be returned. At April 30, 2014, all deposits were fully insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or pledged coliateral.

At April 30, 2014, the carrying amount of deposits of fiduciary activities was $287,439 and the
bank balance was $290,482. At certain times during the fiscal year, bank balances exceeded
FDIC limits. At Aprit 30, 2014, all fiduciary deposits were fully insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FIHC) or pledged collateral.

investments

At April 30, 2014, the carrying amount {(and market value} of the Village's investments for
governmental and business-type activities was $617,205. These amounis represent
investments in Illinois Funds, a pooled investment fund.

Custodial Credit Risk — Cusiodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a custodian failure,
investment principal may not be returned. The illincis Funds are arranged and contracted by
the Treasurer of the State of Hllinois and collateralized as required by that confract. [llinois
Funds was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's as of April 30, 2014,

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest
rates could adversely affect an investments value. The Village has not adopted a formal paolicy
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure {o fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {continued}

Police Pension Fund {Fund)

The Fund manages ifs investments in accordance with the regulations prescribed by the lllincis
Pension Code. Investments at April 30, 2014 consisted of the following managed funds:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Types No
Maturity Less
Fair Value Dale Than i 1-10 Qver 10

Marigage and Asset

Backed securities $ 2,662,008 % - 3 - 3 - $2,662008
U.S. Gavernment Bonds

and GSE Bonds 1,086,336 - - 1,086,336 -
Mutual Funds 6,665,858 6,665,859 - - -
Money Market 429 237 429,237 - - -

Total $10843440 $7095006 § - $1.086336 $2662,008

The Fund's investmenis at April 30, 2014 include uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the broker, dealer’s trust department or an agent in the Fund's
name.

Credit Risk: Credit risk exists when there is a possibility that the issuer or other counterparty to
an investment may be unable to fulfili its obligations. As of April 30, 2014, the Fund held the
following investments which are subject to credit risk.

Investment Type Standard & 2014 Fair
Poar's Rating Market Vaiue
U.8. Treasury Strips Not Rated $ 1,086,336
FNMA Mortgage and Asset Backed Securities Not Rated 308,466
GNMA Mortgage and Asset Backed Securities * 1,873,047
FHLMC Morigage and Asset Backed Securities AA+ 480.405
Total $ .3.748344

* Guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government.

Concentration of Credit Risk: As of April 30, 2014 more than five percent of the Fund's
investments are in the Governmeni National Mortgage Association and U.S. Treasury Sirips.

interest Rate Risk: [nterest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest
rates could adversely affect an investment's value. The Fund has not adopted a formal policy
that Hmits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates.
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NOTE 2 - DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Fund invests in mortgage backed securities. These securities are reported at fair value and
are based on the cash flows from interest and principal payments by the underlying morgages.
As a resulf, they are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a decline
in interest rates.

Foreign currency risk; The Fund’s exposure to foreign currency risk (valued in U.S. dollars} is
as follows as of April 30, 2014;

Investment Currency Maturity Fair Value
Europacific Growth Fund Various N/A § 913704
Total $ 913704

The Fund has not adopted a farmal policy thai limits the Fund’s exposure to foreign currency
risk.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

A summary of receivables as of Aprit 30, 2014 is as follows:

Total Allowance far Net
Receivable Doubtful Accounts  Receivable

Governmental Activities:

Taxes receivable $ 2571188 % - 5 2571188
Other receivables 2,244 - 2,244
Interest receivable 1,676 - 1,676
Business-Type Activities;

Sewer services 343,022 8,697 334,425
Refuse disposal services 28,508 9,634 18,874
interest receivable 1,363 ~ 1,363

Total $ 2848001 §$ 18,231 § 2,928,770

Taxes receivable include amounts due from the Couniy of Kankakee and the State of |llinois for
property, sales, use and income iax collected on behalf of the Village of Bourbonnais. For
receivables other than sewer services receivable and refuse disposal services receivable, the
Village believes these amounts are fully coffectible and therefore no allowance for doubtful
accounts has been established.
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Balance
May 1, 2013 Additions Retirements Transfars Aprii 20, 2014
Governmental activities:

Land, non-depreciable $4264408 & - & - - $ 4,264,409
Land improvements 9,101,445 114,586 - - 9,218,025
Buildings and improvements 8,196,803 12,956 - - 8,208,759
Construction in progress 167,436 2484778 - - 26522156
Equipment 5,924,956 339,658 (25,529) - 8,235,085
Streets and improvements 10,485,172 87,006 - - 10,572,178
Total general fixed assets 38,148,221 3,038,875 (25,529) - 41,153,671
Less accumulated depreciation 17,145,049 1.213.809 (25 529} 18.334 228

Governmenta!l activities,
capital assets, net 520,884 272 $22.815443

Business-type activities:
Land and improvements % 0,876,273 § 28213 § - - §10,004 486
Buildings and improvements 250,000 8,500 - - 258,500
Construction in progress - 364,864 - - 364,864
Equipment 434,129 134,090 - 568,219
Total proprigtary fixed assets 10,660,402 535,667 - - 11,196,069
Less accumutated depreciation 2,856 971 240,104 - 3.197.075

Business-type activilies,
Capita! assets, net $ 7.783.431 $ 7,998 994

Total capital assels,

Net of depreciation $208.697.703 $30.818.437

Note: The May 1, 2013 balances above include the prior pericd adjustment related to capital
assets that is described in Note 18.

NOTE & — INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Balances Due to/from Other Funds

Baiances due to/from other funds at April 30, 2014, consist of the following:

Due to other funds, Governmenta! Funds .

(488,871)

Bue from other funds, Proprietary Funds

Due to other funds, Fiduciary Funds

These balances resulied from the time lag between the dates that 1) reimbursable expenditures
peeurred, 2) transactions were recorded in the accounting sysiem, and 3} paymenis between
funds are made. All interfund balances are expected {o be repaid within one year,

34



VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014

NOTE 5 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued)

Transfers to/from Other Funds

There were no transfers to/from other funds during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014.

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Bonds have been issued {o provide funds for redevelopment projects, for the advance refunding
of bonds previously issued for Motor Fuel Tax Fund and Sewer Operating Fund projects, and for
capital projects refaied to the Sewer Operating Fund.

Long-term debt issued and outstanding as of April 30, 2014 is comprised of the following:

$2,710,000 Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual
installments of $30,000 to $305,000 through December 1, 2020 with interest at 3.45% to
4,125%, payable semiannually.

$4,255,000 General Obligation Bonds (Sales Tax Alternative Revenue source), Series
2012A due in annual instaliments of $70,000 to $270,000 through December 1, 2032
with interest at 2.0% to 3.45%, payable semiannually.

$1,645,000 General Obligation Bonds (Sewerage Alternative Revenue source), Series
2012B due in annual instaliments of $150.000 to $2008,000 through December 1, 2020
with interest at 2.0% to 2.5%, payable semiannually.

Advance Refunding of Debt

In prior years, the Village defeased the remaining portion of the Sewerage Revenue Refunding
Bonds {Series 2001) by placing the proceeds of a new bond issue in escrow to provide for
future debt service payments on the issue. During fiscal year 2014, the remaining $3,125,000 of
defeased bonds from the Sewerage Revenue Refunding Bends (Series 2001) were fully
extinguished.

I August of 2012, the Village defeased the remaining portion of the General Obligation Bonds
{Motor Fuel Taxes Alternative Revenue source), Series 2003 by placing the proceeds of a new
bond issue in escrow to provide far future debt service paymenis on the issue. During fiscal year
2014, the remaining $1,240,000 of defeased bonds from the General Obligation Bonds (Motor
Fuet Taxes Alternative Revenue source), Series 2003 were fully extinguished.
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

The Village is required by bond covenants of the Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2006 ic charge fees sufficient in order to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25. During
the year ended April 30, 2014, the debt service coverage ratio was 3.89.

The Village is required by bond covenants of the General Obligaticn Bonds (Sales Tax
Alternative Revenue source), Series 2012A {0 maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25.
During the year ended Aprit 30, 2014, the debt service coverage ratio was 10.84,

The Village is required by bond covenants of the General Obligation Bonds (Sewerage
Alternative Revenue source), Series 20128 to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25.
During the year ended Aprit 30, 2014, the debt service coverage ratio was 6.09.

Conduit Debt

In July 2007, the Village issued $45,000,000 in industrial project revenue bonds for the express
purpose of providing capital financing to Olivet Nazarene University. At April 30, 2014, the
conduit debt obligation outstanding was $41,600,000, The Vilage has no obligation for this debi.

In July 2010, the Village issued $35,000,000 in industrial project revenue bonds for the express
purpose of providing capital financing to Clivet Nazarene University, At April 30, 2014, the
conduit debt obligation outstanding was $33,855,000. The Village has no obligation for this debt.

In June 2013, the Village issued $20,0006,000 in industrial project revenue bonds for the express
purpose of providing capital financing to Olivet Nazarene University. Principal payments begin
November 1, 2037. At April 30, 2014, the conduit debt obligation outstanding was $20,000,000,
The Viliage has no obligation for this debt,
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended April 30, 2014 are as foflows:

Due Within
May 1, 2013 Increases  Decreases Aprit 30, 2014  One Year

Governmental activities:

Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A 54,185,000 3 ~ (75,000 $ 4,110,000 $ 180,000
General Qblfigation Bonds, Series 20128 1,495,000 - (175,000} 1,320,000 180,000
Total bonds principal 5,680,000 - (250,000% 5,430,000 370,000
Unamortized premium on bond issuance 82.454 - (8,592} 73,862 -
Total bonds payable 5,762,454 - (258,592} 5,503,862 370,000
Capital lease 40,754 126,251 (67,564} 99,441 23,737
Compensated absences 573,574 74,791 - 648,365 -
Totat long-term debt $6376782 3 201,042 $ (326,156) & B,261,6B8 3§ 383,737

Business-type activities:

Bonds Payable:
Sewerage Refunding Revenue Bonds (20068) $ 2155000 § - § (235,000) § 1,920,000 § 240,000
Total bonds principal 2,155,000 - (235,000) 1,920,000 240,000
Compensated absences B.421 - - 8.421 -
Total iong-ferm debt $2163421 5 - § (235000) § 1,928,421 $ 240,000

Note: The May 1, 2013 balances above do not include the unamortized loss on refunding
which is stated separately on the Statement of Net Fosition as a deferred outfiow of
resources in accordance with GASE Statement No. 65.

Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on bonds outstanding at April 30, 2014 are as follows:

Govermnmenta! Activities Business-type Activities
Year ending Aprit 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 370,000 $§ 140,830 $ 240000 % 72000
2018 375,000 133,580 255,000 63,840
2017 390,000 126,080 265,000 55,575
2018 380,000 118,280 275,000 45,820
2018 395,000 110,480 285,000 35,843
20206-2024 1,510,000 414,325 600,060 36.881
2025-2029 1,280,000 242293 - -
2030-2032 720000 64,225 - -

$ 5,430,000 51,350,293 $1,920,000 $ 309,959
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Legqal Debt Margin

According to lHinois statutes, the legal debt limit is 8.625% of assessed vaiuation. The following
is the legal debt margin calculation for the year ending Aprit 30, 2014,

Assessed valuation - 2012 levy year $315,103,352
Less Tax Increment Financing Districis 1,079,377

Assessed valuation, net of abatements

Statutory debt fimit - B.625% of assessed valuation

Total debt:
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A g 4,110,000
General Obtigation Bonds, Series 20128 1,320,000
Total debt

Legal debt margin

NOQOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Secticn 457, the Village sponsars a defined
contribution plan for which empioyees may elect to have contributions withheld frem their gross
wages and depasited into the plan on their behalf. The Village has confracted Nationwide
Retirement Solutions to administer the plan and has no oversight or coniroi over funds
deposiied inta the plan by employees. Employees manage and invest funds held in their own
accounts, There is no maiching requirement by the Village for this plan.

Defined Benefit Pensicn Plan

Plan Description - The Viilage of Bourbannais, Hlinois' defined benefit pension plan for Regular
employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death
benefils to plan members and beneficiaries. The employer plan is affiiated with the Hlinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are
established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the Siate of
lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial stalemenis and
required supplementary information (RSI). That repert may be obtained on-line ai www.imrf org.

Funding Policy - As set by statuie, Regular plan members are required to coniribute 4.50
percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to condribute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, o finance the retirerment coverage of its own
employees. The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 13.72
percent. The Village also contribuies for disability benefits, death benefits and suppiemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability
and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement
benefits rate is set by statute.
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NOTE 7 —~ PENSION PLANS (continued)

Annual Pension Cost — The Village's required coniribulion for the year ended April 30, 2014
was $264,015.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular Plan

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Ending Cost (APCY  APC Coniributed Obligation
473012014 $ 284,015 100% $ -
4/30/2013 $ 265,838 100% 3 -
443072012 $ 238,069 100% $ -

The required contribution for 2013 was determined as part of the December 31, 2011 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at
December 31, 2011, included {a) 7.5 percent invesiment rate of return (net of administrative and
direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attribuiable to
inftation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from §.4% o 10% per year depending
on age and service, aitributable to seniority/merit, and (d} post-retirement benefit increases of
3% annually. The actuarial value of the employer Regular plan assets was determined using
iechniques thai spread the effects of shori term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The
Village's plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2011 is being amortized as
a level perceniage of projecied payroi on an open 30 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial
vaiuation date, the Regutar plan was 70.60 percent funded. The actuarial accrued fabiiily for
benefits was $5,251,138 and the actuarial value of assels was $3,707,135, resuliing in an
underfunded actuaria! accrued iability (UAAL) of $1,544,003. The covered payroll for calendar
year 2013 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,879,533 and the
ratio of the UAAL fo the covered payroll was 78 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statemenis, presents muitiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued fiabitity for benefits.

Police Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Bourbonnais Police Pensicn Fund is a single-emplover defined benefit
pension pitan that covers the fuli-time police officers of the Village of Bourbonnais. It was created
and is administered as prescribed by "Article 3, Police Pension Fund - Municipalities 500,000
and Under" of the lllincis Pension Code {40 lliinois Compiled statutes, 5, Article 3). The
Bourbonnais Police Pension Fund issued a separate financial repont dated Sepiember 9, 2014.
A copy of that report may be obtained by contacting the Village of Bourbonnais.
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies - The Bourbonnais Police Pension Fund
financial staiements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer
contributions tc the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Invesiments are reported at fair value based upon
quoted market prices. Cash deposils are reported at carrying amounis which reasonably
estimates fair value.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation — The Village's required contribution for
fiscal year 2014 was $425,667 for the Police Pension Plan. The Police Pansion Flan did not
obtain an actuarial valuation during fiscal year 2012 and therefore was unable to determine the
Village's required contribution for that year.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Police Pension Plan

Fiscal Year  Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Ending Cost (APC)  APC Contributed Cbligation
4/30/2014 3 425,667 100% 3 -
4/30/2013 $ 400,372 100% $ -
4/30/2012 Unknown Unknown Unknown

Funded S$tatus and Funding Progress - As of April 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the police pension plan was 73.22 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability
for benefits was $13,881,882 and the actuarial value of assets was $10,171,618, resulting in an
underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,720,264. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,534,174 and the ratio of the UAAL to
{he covered payroll was 242,49 percent.

A scheduie of funding progress, presented in the Required Supplementary Information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents muitiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over lime relative to the actuarial
accrued Hability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - in the April 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age
normal cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions inciuded (a) 6.5 percent investment
rate of return and (b) projected salary increases of 4.5 percent per year. Both (a) and (b)
included a cost of living adjustment of 1.25 perceni, The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value
of investmenis. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2013 was approximately 27
years.
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NOTE 8 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

fn addition to providing pension benefits as described in Note 7, the Village provides post-
employment health care benefits (OFEB) for retired employees through a single empioyer
defined benefit plan. The benefils, benefit levels, employee contributions and any employer
contributions are governed by the Village and can be amended by the Village through its
personnel manual and union contracts. The plan is not accounied for as a trust fund, as an
irrevocable trusi has not been established io account for the plan. The pian does not issue a
separate report. The activities of the plan are reported in the Village's General Fund.

Benefits Provided

The Village offers post-employment health care benefits to its retirees. To be eligibie for
benefits, an employee must qualify for retirement under one of the Village's retirement plans or
meet COBRA requirements, except for the Public Works unicn employees, who are covered
under the union’s insurance plan.

All health care benefits are provided through the Village's health plan. The benefit levels are the
same as those afforded to active employees. Benefils include general inpatient and outpatient
medical services; mental, nervous, and substange abuse care; and prescriptions. Eligibility in
the Village sponsored health care plan is not discontinued upon eligibility for federally
sponsored health care benefits. The retirees may continue on the Village's heaith plan as a
supplement to other ptans for which the retirees are eligible.

Membership
At April 30, 2014, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them -
Active plan members 101
Total 104
Funding Policy

The Village negoetiates the contribution percentages between the Village and employees through
the union confracis and personnel policy. All retirees contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined premium to the plan to cover the cost of providing the benefits to the current
members via the insured plan (pay as you go) which resulfs in an implicit subsidy to the Village
as defined by the GASB Statement No. 45, For the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014, the Village
contributed $33,311 toward the implicit subsidy. The Village is not required to and currently
does not advance fund the cost of benefits that wili become due and payable in the fufure.
Active employees do not contribute to the plan uniil retirement.
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPER Obligation

The Village performed a valuation for the plan as of April 30, 2014 using actuarial software to
determine the funded status of the plan as of that date as well as the employers annual
required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended Aprii 30, 2014. The Village's annuatl OPEB
cost, the percentage of annuatl OPEB cost contributed o the plan, and the net OPERB obligation
for April 30, 2014 were as {ollows:

Percentage of

Year Ending Annuat Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Aprij 30, OPFEB Cost  Contributions  Cost Contributed Obtigation
2014 $ 261,566 $ 33311 12.7% $ 571,627
2013 5 279,576 $ 35,108 12.6% $ 343,372
2012 $ 35612 3 5,338 15.0% $ 98904

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30, 2014, was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution 3 262,239
interest on net OPEB obligation 18,885
Adjustment to annual required coniribution (18,558)
Annual OPEB cost 261,566
Age adjusted contributions made (33,311)
Change in net QPEB obligation 228,255
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 343,372
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The Funded status of the plan as of April 30, 2014 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 2,857,074
Actuariat value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (LJAAL)

Funded ratio (actuaria! value of plan assets/AAL) 0.0%
Covered payrolt (active plan members) § 3,188,482
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 89.61%
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NOTE 8 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (contfinued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reporied amounis and
assumptions about the probability of ocourrence of events far into the fiture, Examples include
assumptions about future employment, moriality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounis
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annuai required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actuatl resulis are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future, The schedule of funding progress, presenied as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
mulliyear frend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plan assets are
increasing or degreasing over time relative to the actuarial acerued liabilities for benefits,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and inciude the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs betwean
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce shori-term volatility in actuarial accrued labilities
and the actuarial value of asseis, consisteni with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2014 valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumplions included a 5.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an
annua! healthcare cost trend rate starting at 7.0% initially and 5.2% ultimately. Both raies
include a 2.5% infiation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the
Village has not advance funded its obligation. The plan's unfunded actuarial acerued liability is
being amortized as a level perceniage of projecied payroll on a closed basis. The remaining
amortization period at April 30, 2014, was 25 years.

NOTE 9 - AGENCY FUNDS

in 1995, the Village established a Community Fund which received donations from taxpayers fo
be used for Youth Groups and Senior Citizens' programs. The balance in this fund at April 30,
2014 was $5,427. The Village also has a Building Escrow Fund which accounts for the
accumulation of fees assessed to contractors arising from residential development. These fees
will either be used to pay expenses related to the development incurred on behalf of the
contractor or they will be refunded io the contractor. The balance in this fund at April 30, 2014
was $21,884.

NOTE 10 - REDEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS

The Village has a series of redevelcpment contracts connected with its Tax Increment Financing
District. These contracts are set up to refund a portion of sales {ax and/or property taxes to the
businesses. Monetary maximums and time limitations are set forth for each reimbursement
agreement.
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NOTE 10 ~ REDEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

On December 30, 2013, the Viliage, through its Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan,
entered into a redevelopment confract where the Village has agreed to convey certain real
property o the developer and that the Village will initially pay to construct a private access road
with an estimated cost of $257 000. This private access road will provide access to certain real
property to be owned by ihe developer and other real property located adjacent to that property.
The developer is required to reimburse the Village for 36 percent of the costs of construction of
the private access road by making five equal payments to the Village over a five year period.
The Developer is required to pay all plan review fees and sewer tap on fees charged by the
Village.

This agreement is contingent upon the Developer determining that the redevelopment project as
described in the agreement is economically feasible and that suitable and affordable financing is
available. In addition, the agreement is contingent upan the Village and the Developer agreeing
to and recording resiriclive covenants on the real property described in the agreement. If any of
these contingencies are not met, either the Village or the Developer may declare the agreement
null and void.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village, through membership in the Illinvis Municipal League Risk Management
Association, insures all major areas of risk. This insurance program combines elements of self-
insurance (at the Association level) with pure insurance. Member contributions are based on the
loss experience of the Village and that of the Asgociation as a whole.

The Village's cost is based on rates determined by the Trustees of the Fund. Members of the
Fund may also be subject to additicnal contributions not to exceed 10 percent of such member's
contribution for the most recent fiscal vear of the Fund if additional reserves are deemed
necessary by the Fund's trustees. Assessments, if any, for the Fund fiscal year ended April 30,
2014 are not determinable.

NOTE 12 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Village leases equipment with an original cost of $130,751 and accumulated depreciation of
$13,075 under a capital jease arrangement at April 30, 2014. Future minimum lease payments
at April 30, 2014 are as follows:

Fiscat Year Amount
2015 $ 26,810
20186 26,810
2017 26,810
2018 28810
Total minimum lease payments 107,240
Less: amounts representing interest 7,798

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 99,441
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NOTE 13 -~ COMMITMENTS

During fiscal year 2011 the Village of Bourbonnais called a tetter of credit that was pledged fo
{he Village by a developer as surety for completion of improvements to the Stone Mill Farms
subdivision. These funds were deposited into a cerificate of deposit and along with the
investment earnings are required to be used by the Village o compiete certain improvements in
the Stone Milf Farms subdivision. The balance of the funds held by the Village for this purpose
was $205,903.

On October 23, 2013, the Village eniered into an intergovernmental agreement with the State of
lilinots, Department of Transporiation for the construction of an interchange at interstate 57 and
reconstruction of Bourbonnais Parkway. Under this agreement the Village is required fo
reimburse the State for an estimated $730,000 of construciion costs.

NOTE 14 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL JOINT VENTURE

Effective May 1, 1996, pursuant io a Municipal Joint Sewage Treaiment Agency
Intergovernmential Agreement, the City of Kankakee and the villages of Aroma Park,
Bourbonnais, and Bradley agreed to the establishmenti of an independent agency with authority
to operate the Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility (RWTF), raise revenue and exercise
other powers as necessary. The independent agency created is the Kankakee River
Metropolitan Agency (KRMA). The agreement requires a seven member board comprised of
faur persons appointed by the Mayor of the City of Kankakee and one persen appointed by the
Mayer of each village. A majorily of five affirmative voles is required to modify this agreement,
modify the methodolegy or the amounts of user charges, and approve bond issues or any
appropriation in excess of $50,000 or to change the membership of the agency. Cn Aprif 22,
1889, KRMA acquired ownership of the RWTF.

As of April 30, 2014, the Village's net investment in the joint venture was $5,928,917. Charges
for services o the Village during the year ended April 30, 2014 were $1,686,519.
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NOTE 14 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL JOINT VENTURE {continued)

The amounts included below for the Kankakee River Metropalitan Agency were derived from
financials statement that were audiled by other audilors whose report has been furnished to us.
We did not audit the financial statements of the Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency. Financial
statementis of the joint veniure can be abtained by confacting the Viliage of Bourbonnais.

Pertinent financial information for the joint venture as of April 3G, 2814 is as follows:

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position:

Operating revenues $ 10,923,841
Operating expenses (7,328,227}
Non-pperating income (expenses) (872,707}
Prior period adjustment {208,374)
Change in net position 2,507,533
Ownership percentage 28.72%

Village's share of net income (loss)
(equity interest in joint venture's income or loss) & 748 239

NOTE 156 —~ LOSS CONTINGENCIES

The Village is involved in fitigation from {ime to time on a variety of matters in connection with
ihe services il provides. The Village Attorney estimates that the amount of actual or potential
claims against the Village as of April 30, 2014 will not materially affect the financial condition of
the Village or any of the individual funds. Seitlement amounts are not expected to exceed
insurance caverage. Therefore, the General Fund contains no provision for estimated claims.

The Special Tax Allocation Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricled to expenditures for special purposes. The Special Tax
Allocation Fund includes the transactions of the Village's two tax increment financing districts.
The property tax portion of Tax Increment Financing Disirict No. 5 ended December 31, 2010.
The remaining sales tax portion of this district ended on December 31, 2013. All funds kheld, but
not commitied to projects allowed under the TIF Act as of December 31, 2013, are required to
be returned to the State of [Hinois at that time. As of December 31, 2013, all funds held by the
Special Tax Allocation Fund of the Village had been commiited to projects aliowed under the
TIF Act.
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NOTE 16 — PLEDGED REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The Village has pledged specific revenue, net of specific operating expenses, {o repay the
principal and interest of revenue bonds. All segment reporting requirements are inciuded in the
fund financial statements. The following is a schedule of the pledged revenues and related

debt;
Current Year
Future Net Pledged Net
Source of Revenues Term of Revenue to Debt
Bord Issue Purpose Revenue Pledged PFledged {1)  Commitment  Service (2)
Sewerage Refunding To ativancerefunda  Netrevenuesof  § 2,228,959 2021 55.8%
Revenue Bonds, portion of the Series  the Village's
Series 2006 2001 revenue bonds  sewer system
General Ohbligation Capital projects and to  Allsales, useand § 5,335,193 2032 BO.5%
Bonds, Series 20124  advance refund the property taxes
series 2003 Motor Fuel collected by the
Tax General Obligation Village
Bonds
General Ohligation To advance refund the  Moneys to the 5 1,445,100 2021 166.9%

Bonds, Series 20128

remaining portion of the credit of the

Series 2001 revenue  Surplus account

bonds of the Sewer
Fund, and
advalorem taxes
levied against o
property in the
Village

{1} Total future principal and inferest payments on debt.

{2) Current year pledged net operating revenue (excluding depreciation} vs. total fufure debt service.

NOTE 17 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

As of April 30, 2014, intergovernmenta!l revenue reported in the Governmental Funds Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance consisted of the following:

State income tax
Siate sales tax
Siate use tax
Motor fuel tax

Qther

Total

2014
Special Tax  Motor Fuel Tax

General Fund  Allocation Fund Fund Total 2013
& 1537742 $ - 8 - % 1,637,742 § 1,762,818
2,487,911 183,677 - 2,691,588 3,324,307
308,692 - - 309,692 286,765
- - 480,068 480,968 443,652
46,701 - - 46,701 £8,606
$ 4,352,046 3 183,677 % 480968 $ 5066681 $ 5,896,148
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NOTE 18 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the year ended April 30, 2014, the Village determined that a certain capital asset
constructed in previous years was not recorded in the Statement of Net Position as of Aprit 30,
2013. This error caused tofal assets fo be understated and net position {o be understated by
$1,942,670. The Village has recorded a prior period adjustment as of May 1, 2013 in order o
correct this error.

During the year ended Aprit 30, 2014, the Village has adopted GASB Statement No. 85, ffems
Freviously Repcrted as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards thai reclassify, as deferred outfiows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as asseis and liabilities and
recognizes, as outfiows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities. As a result of implementing this statement, the Village has
recorded prior period adjustments as of May 1, 2013 to expense the unamortized cost of
issuance reported in both governmental activities and business-type activities.

The effect of these prior pericd adjustments was to increase net position as follows:

Governmental Business-type

Description of Adjusiment Activities Activities Total
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 1942670 & -~ $ 1,942 670
Unamoriized issuance cost {77,588) {47,731) {125,297)
Net effect of prior period adjustments S5 1865104 & {47,731y § 1,817,373
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REVENUES

Tax revenue

Fine revenue
Franchise taxes
Licenses revenue

VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Miscellaneous revenue

FPermit revenue

Reimbursemeni revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

President and Board of Trustees Department
Administrative Depariment
Community Development

Pclice Depariment

Public works Department
Code enforcement Department
Central services Department
Finance Department

Street Depariment
Parks Department
Capital projects
Debt service:

Principal payments on debt
interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital lease financing
Proceeds from debt issue

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
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2014
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
5709820 % 5708820 3 5878826
154,200 154,200 192,874
280,000 280,000 295,828
32,400 32,400 31,850
100,000 100,060 238,412
124,700 124,700 335,691
491,857 491,857 77,661
6,902,877 6,902,977 7,051,042
86,835 86,835 97,737
195,166 195,166 198,905
74,911 74,911 81,289
3,618,770 3,618,770 3,464,343
1,194,308 1,194,308 1,235,242
273,710 273,710 271,637
1,333,876 1,333,676 842,123
235,064 235,064 237,491
151,084 151,084 168,647
50,644 50,644 52,955
2,601,233 2,601,233 893,673
- - 250,000
- - 146,640
9,825,401 9,825,401 8,140,582
- - 126,251
2,601,233 2,601,233 -
321,188 321,189 -
2,922,422 2,922 422 126,251
(2 § {2) 3 (963,289)




VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

2014
Originai Final
Budaget Budget Actual
REVENUES
Tax revenue $ 2472687 & 247267 § 277,792
Misceilaneous revenue 14,500 14,500 418
Toial revenues 261,767 261,767 278,210
EXPENDITURES
Highway and streels 61,000 61,000 386
Econcmic develcpment 534,985 534 895 35,108
l.egal and professicnal 17,000 17,000 8,799
Dues and seminars 825 825 650
Administrative and other 209,410 209,410 269,966
Engineering 3,000 3,000 -
Other capital projects 2,634,201 2,634,201 2,101,784
Total expenditures 3,460,431 3,460,431 2,420,694
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from reserves 3,254,931 3,254,931 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,254,931 3,254,931 -

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures  $ 56,267 % 56,267

$ {(2,142,484)
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

REVENUES
Tax revenue
Reimbursement revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cenfractual service
Commodities
Capitai projects
Debt service:
interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

a1

2014
QOriginal Final
Budget Budget Actual

$ 449,007 § 449,007 480,968
149,000 149,000 189,809
22,000 22,000 o8
620,007 620,007 870,875
534,860 534,900 325,744
66,500 66,500 86,210
- - 91,635
- - 464
601,400 601,400 504,053
B 18,607 § 18,607 166,922




VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
APRIL 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Village adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, Special Tax Allocation Funds, Motor
Fuel Tax Fund, Sewer Fund and Refuse Fund. Expenditures for capital project funds are
controlled on a project basis.

The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in financial
statements:

1.

Prior to Juiy 1, the Village Treasurer submits to the Village Board of Trustees a proposed
operating budget for the fisca! year which had commenced May 1.

Public hearings are conducted {o obtain taxpayer comments.

Prior to August 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of the annual
appropriation ordinance. This ordinance places legal restrictions on expenditures for the
General Fund and ai the fund level for the Special Revenue Funds. Once approved, the
Village Board of Trustees may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected
modifications are required in estimated revenues and appropriations.

Controf of and amendments to the budget rest with the Village Board of Trustees. No
suppiemental appropriations were necessary during the year. Origina! and final
approved budget amounts have been presented in the budgetary comparison schedules,

Appropriations for ali funds are adopted on a basis cansisteni with the accrua!l basis of
accounting.
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1o 200 East Court Street « Suite 608 « Kankakee, 1L 60901
tified Public Acconntants & Consultatty 815.033.1771 » fax: 815.033.1163

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
EINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trusiees
Village of Bourbonnais
Bourbonnais, jlinois

We have audited, in accordance with the audiling standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrofler General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Village of Bourbonnais, lllinois, as of and for the year
ended Aprit 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Village of Bourbonnais, Hinois’ basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated December 3, 2014. Qur report includes a reference fo other auditors who audited
the financial statements of the Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency, as described in our report
on the Village of Bourbonnais, Iinois’ financial statements. This report does not include the
results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reperling or compliiance or
other matters that are reporied on separately by those auditors.

internal Control over Financiat Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Village of
Bourbonnais, Illincis’ internal control over financiat reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures lhat are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Village of Bourbonnais, liinois’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Village of Bourbonnais, Hlinois’ intemal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, malerial weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employses, in the normal course of performing their assigned funclions, {o
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combinalion of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
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possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’'s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal conirol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough 1o merit altention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in findings 14-1 and 14-2 in the accompanying scheduie of findings to be
material weaknesses,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Village of Bourbonnais, [linois'
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulalions, contracts, and grani agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matiers that are required o be reporied
under Government Auditing Standards.

Village of Bourbonnais, lilinois’ Response to Findings

Village of Bourbonnais, llinois' responses io the findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings. Village of Bourbonnais, Hinois' responses were nol
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our {esting of internal conirol and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’'s internal comtrol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal contro} and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

ﬁm/mo% {52;.%23?;& + o .

December 3, 2014
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
APRIL 30, 2014

FINDING 14-1: PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
Condition

The Village of Bourbonnais (Village) did not prepare financial statements and disclosures in
accordance with accounting principles generafly accepled in the United States of America.
Certain material adjustments were needed to correct the Village's account balances as of Aprii
30, 2014. These adjustmenis have been proposed to Viliage management and have been
approved for posting to the Viliage's accounts by Village managemeni.

Cause

Due {o the limited amount of resources available, the Village has historically depended on its
auditors to reconcile certain yearend balances, fo prepare financial statements and to prepare
disclosures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates of
America. Certain accounts within the Village of Bourbonnais' accounting records have
essentially been maintained on the cash basis of accounting and required adjustments fo
convert the account balances io the accrual basis of accounting.

Effect

Not preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principies generally accepted
in the United State of America results in the inaccurate reporting of financial information.

Recommendation

We recommend the Village reconcile all account balances to detailed records as a part of its
yearend closing process in order to provide accurate account balances in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As your auditors, we may continue {o help with typing and formatting of the financial statements,
but cannot perform recanciliation procedures or make management decisions regarding the
preparation of the Village's financial staiements. Accordingly, we wish to remind Village
management that your independent auditors are not part of the Village's internal control system.

We understand the Village has assigned an individual to oversee the preparation of the financial
statements and disclosures. We recommend the Vitlage continue to do so in the future.

Management’'s Response

Village management will reconcile account balances prier to praviding such information to our
auditors and will continue to assign an individual to oversee the preparation of the financial
statements and disclosures in arder to ensure that all management decisions related to this
process are made by Village management.
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VILLAGE OF BOURBONNAIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
APRIL 30, 2014

FINDING 14-2; CAPITAL ASSET ADDITIONS NOT RECORDED
Condition

During our audit we noted that the Village of Bourbonnais (Village) had previously failed to
recard a capital asset that was acquired in a previous year via an intergovernmental agreement
with the State of liiinois, Department of Transportation (IDOT}. The agreement states that IDOT
was o pay 80 percent of the construction cost of a street known as Burns Road Phase |. The
totai construction costs (before depreciation) of the street paid for by IDOT was $2,011,598.

A prior period adjustment has been proposed to Village management and has been approved
far posting to the Village's accounts by Village management.

Cause

Village management typically reviews expenditures recorded in the general ledger at yearend {o
determine capital asset activity that should be reflected in the financial statements. Village
officials stated ihat not recording the portion of the strest constructed by IDOT was an
accounting oversight.

Effect

Not recording capital assets in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America results will cause capital assets to be understated.

Recommendation

We recommend the Village implement procedures to ensure that alf capital asset transactions
are recorded at the time they ocour,

Management's Response

Village management agrees with the recommendation and will develop procedures fo ensure
that all capital asset transactions are recorded at the time they cccur.
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. 200 East Court Street » Suite 608 = Kankakee, IL 60901
Certified Pullic Acepuniants & Consulianis 815.G33.1771 ¢ fax: 815.033.1163

December 3, 2014

To the Board of Trustees and management
of the Village of Bourbonmnats
Bourbonnais, Hlinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Bourbonnais for the vear ended April 30, 2014 and have issued our report thereon dated
December 3, 2014, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standardy penerally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States,

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village of Bourbonnais’ internal control
over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of cxpressing our opinion on the financial statements but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Bourbonnais™ internal control over
financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Viillage of Bourbonnais™ internal control over financial reporting.

During our audit we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational
matters that are presented for your consideration. The following is a description of the matters
noted:

Accounts Payable System

The Village does not currently maintain a perpetual accounis payable system.
However, the Village does record accounts payable as of Aprit 30 of each year to
ersure aceurnte reporting in the Village’s financial statements.

Capital Assets Inventory

The Village currently does not maintain a complete capital asscls invertory. The
Village does maintain a list of capital assets that are ewrrently being depreciated.
However, the Village does not maintain 8 lst of capital assets that are fully
depreciated and therefore cannot perform an annual physical nventory to easure
that capifal assets have not been misappropriated.




Board of Trustees
Village of Bourbonnals
December 3, 2014
Page 2

As auditors, we have previously been able to rely on prior audits for a beginning
halance. We then can test the activity (additions and deletions) during the current
year to defermine if the Village’s capital assets are accurately stated on the Village's
financial statements.  Changes in accounting standards will require the Village to
create a capital asset inventory as any successor auditors will no longer be able o
rely upon a predecessor auditor’s work to the same extent.

in addition, we identified certain material weaknesses that have been reported to you m our
Independent Auditors” Report on Internal Control over Financinl Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Stapdards.

This communication 18 intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board
of Trustees of the Village of Bourbonnais and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
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Borschnack, Pelietier & Co.



